
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, January 19, 2021 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
5. Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge Road 

[Map 092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2] (staff-P&D) (tabled from 12/15/2020 meeting) 

6. Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings LLC, to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-

2 on Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3] (staff-P&D) (tabled from 

12/15/2020 meeting) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - January 8, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - January 11, 2021 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of 2021 Alcohol License (staff-CC) 

9. Authorization for staff to schedule Public Hearing for proposed changes to the Putnam County 

Code of Ordinances - Chapter 6 (Alcohol), Chapter 66 (Zoning), and Appendix D (Short Term 

Vacation Rental) (staff-CA & CC) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
10. County Manager Report 

11. County Attorney Report 

12. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
13. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 

092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2] (staff-P&D) (tabled from 12/15/2020 meeting)

2



Minutes                                                                           Page 1 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

December 15, 2020                                                                                                                                                       January 8, 2021 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, December 15, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, December 15, 2020 at 

approximately 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
7. Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge 

Road [Map 092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2] (staff-P&D) 

The applicant is requesting to table this item. 

Mr. Larry Moore and Mr. Danny Copelan spoke in support of this request.  They requested to 

defer this request until the January 19, 2021 BOC meeting and distributed two handouts.  Mr. 

Scott Martin, Mrs. Heidi King, and Mr. Jon King spoke against this item. 

 

Planning & Development staff recommendation was for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea 

Ridge Road [Map 092, Parcel 017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following 

conditions:  

(1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia 

Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service 

the entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the development.   

(2) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder 

shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. 

 

3



Minutes                                                                           Page 2 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

December 15, 2020                                                                                                                                                       January 8, 2021 

Motion to table the request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 

at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, Part of Parcel 017001001] until the January 19, 2021 

meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of handouts made part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

      Chairman 

4



5



Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge Road. [Map 
092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 to establish a commercial business. However, C-1 
zoning is more applicable for this proposed location and use. The concept plan shows a convenience store with gas 

station fuel pumps. This proposed commercial business will be located at the corner of Georgia State Route 16 and 
Pea Ridge Road. The desired use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in Sec. 66-103. - Uses allowed of the 

C-1 zoning district. The C-1 use could impact a couple of nearby properties. Still, overall, it would not adversely 
affect the area given that the proposed location is at the corner of a state highway and a main arterial road. Georgia 
State Route 16 is a major thoroughfare through Putnam County, and Pea Ridge Road is an important connector 

between Georgia State Route 16, U.S. Highway 441, and the Lake Oconee area. The property can be used as it is 
currently zoned; however, it would be more marketable as commercial in its given location. Although the Future 

Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture in this area, the location of this property makes it prime for 
commercial-1 development. If approved, the proposed development could adversely impact and create congestion 
for this busy intersection. Therefore, staff recommends that the developer installs a deceleration lane on Pea Ridge 

Road. Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by 
the developer to the county. 

 
The staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, Parcel 

017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following conditions:  
(1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia 

Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the 

entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the development.   
(2) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall 

be dedicated by the developer to the county. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

6



 

7



 

 

 
 
 

 

House 

House 
House 

Request by Danny Copelan at 931 Pea Ridge Road from AG-2 to C-1 

8



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road 
[Map 092, Parcel 017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following conditions:  

(1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of 
Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the 
development.   

(2) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by 
the developer to the county. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, December 3, 2020, at 

6:30 P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 
Member Martha Farley 

Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training requirements) 
 
STAFF: 

Lisa Jackson 
Ben Schmitt 

 
Mr. Copelan represented this request. He stated that he was previously here in September with this property; after 
meeting with the county commissioners and had learned of their safety concerns, he addressed them with his 

engineers. He wanted to address those concerns, to speak further on this, he asked Mr. Larry Moore to speak. Mr. 
Moore noted that the safety issues had been addressed. The drawings rendered had been updated to show a 

deceleration lane on the property, which matches the specifications of the deceleration lane at Harmony Crossing by 
McDonald's. The Georgia Department of Transportation has approved these plans and will reexamine them once 
approved by zoning. He also noted that there are pockets of commercial zone properties in that area. Further, he 

pointed out that the nearest gas station is in Eatonton on Sumter Street and that it is over 10 miles to the next 

9



station on 16 and Long Shoals. The station on Scuffleboro Road to Harmony Crossing is also 10 miles. The Copelan’s 
property is strategically located in the center between the other stations. It was his opinion that the convenience 

store is needed there as well. To address concerns about the placement of a commercial property on a scenic 
highway, Mr. Moore noted that he is the Chairman of the Historic Scenic Byway Corporation. He indicated that they 

are in favor of this rezoning. The property in question is not a historical, cultural, archeological, or recreational site 
that needs protection. He also noted that the project would not negatively impact the scenery. No one spoke in 
opposition to this request. 

 
Member Hill asked if they had a hazmat plan in place. Mr. Copelan noted that yes, one would be done; otherwise, 

they will not be able to proceed with their project. Chairman Marshall asked where on the lot is the building going 
to be located, because the property is long and narrow. Will it be facing Pea Ridge or 16? Mr. Copelan showed the 
location of the proposed building to the board. 

 
The staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, Parcel 

017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following conditions:  
(1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia 

Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the 

entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the development.   
(2) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall 

be dedicated by the developer to the county. 
 

Motion to approve the request by Willie David Copelan, to rezone 5 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, 
Parcel 017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following conditions:  
1.) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation 

Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the development.  
2.) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the 

developer to the county. 
 
Made by Member Farley, seconded by Vice-Chairman Pierson  

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member Hill. 
 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



092
023

092
026

092022

092 027

092 029

09
2

02
90

01

092013001

092
012

092
 01

3

092
 01

4

092 009002

092
 02

1

092 015

092 002

092
 00

7

092
 00

3

09
2 0

21
00

1

092 017

092
 00

9

092008 092 009004

092
040

092
025

Pe
a R

idg
e R

d S
E

Oconee Springs Rd SE

R-1R

AG-1

Middle Georgia Regional Commission
175 Emery Hwy

Suite C
Macon, Georgia 31217

(478) 751-6160
Web:

www.middlegeorgiarc.org

IT GIS Services

DATE: JUNE 2020

MAP 092
PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA

ZONING MAPS

µ
1:4,800SCALE RATIO:MAP SCALE: 1 " = 400 '

70 99 100
14 41 42 69 71 98 101

13 15 40 43 68 72 97 102
12 16 39 44 67 73 96 103 121
11 17 38 45 66 74 95 104 120 122
10 18 37 46 65 75 94 105 119 123
9 19 36 47 64 76 93 106 118 124 130
8 20 35 48 63 77 92 107 117 125 129
7 21 34 49 62 78 91 108 116 126 128
6 22 33 50 61 79 90 109 115 127
5 23 32 51 60 80 89 110 114
4 24 31 52 59 81 88 111
3 25 30 53 58 82 87 112
2 26 29 54 57 83 86 113
1 27 28 55 56 84 85 .

TAX MAP 
GRID GEOGRAPHIC FEATURE LEGEND

Eatonton Limits
County Boundary
Roads
Parcels
Parcel_Hooks

Zoning
Overlay District
 No Code
AG-1
AG-1 CITY

AG-2
C-1
C-1 CITY
C-2

C-2 CITY
I-M
IND-1 CITY
IND-2

IND-2 CITY
MHP
PUBLIC
PUBLIC CITY

R - 1 CITY
R - 2 CITY
R - 3 CITY
R - 4 CITY

R-1
R-1R
R-2
RM-1

RM-2
RM-3
VILLAGE

41



093 058

093 060

093 049

093
050

093
055

093 05
4093 051 093 052001 093 061002

093 059

093
061004

092
017001

002

092 017001 001

093 052

092
017001

Sparta Hwy

Pea Ridge Rd SE

Pea Ridge Ln SE

Sparta Hwy

AG-1

C-1

AG-2

42



43



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings LLC, to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2 on 

Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3] (staff-P&D) (tabled from 12-15-2020 

meeting)

44



Minutes                                                                           Page 1 of 1                                                                                     Approved 

December 15, 2020                                                                                                                                                       January 8, 2021 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, December 15, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, December 15, 2020 at 

approximately 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
8. Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings LLC, to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to 

C-2 on Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

The applicant is requesting to table this item. 

Mr. Matthew Zieo and Mr. Rett Tyler spoke in support of this request and distributed a handout.  

They had emailed a request to defer this item until January, but withdrew that request at the 

meeting.  No one signed in to speak against this item. 

 

Planning & Development staff recommendation was for denial to rezone 2.76 acres on 

Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062] from C-1 to C-2.  

 

Motion to table the request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings LLC, to rezone 

2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2 on Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062] until the 

January 19, 2021 meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of handout made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

45



1

Lynn Butterworth

From: Lisa Jackson
Sent: Wednesday, December 9, 2020 7:30 AM
To: Lynn Butterworth
Cc: Paul Van Haute; Billy Webster
Subject: FW: Skiers Marine Rezoning Case

 
Good morning Lynn, 
Please see the request by Skiers Marine to defer their rezoning request until January. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Lisa Jackson  

From: Matthew Zieg   
Sent: Tuesday, December 8, 2020 6:26 PM 
To: Courtney Andrews <candrews@putnamcountyga.us> 
Cc: Tyler, Rett > 
Subject: Skiers Marine Rezoning Case 
 
Courtney 
We met with Commissioner Sharp this afternoon to discuss our rezoning case for Tyler Land Holdings, LLC on Map 103A 
Parcel 062. 
We'd like to request a delay of our County Board of Commissioners case hearing from the December 15th meeting date 
to the January meeting. 
 
Thank you and please confirm when our request is approved. 
 
Matthew Zieg, PE 
President 
CSC Design, Inc 
Office | (770) 345-2579 

 
 

46



Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings, LLC to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2 on 
Greensboro Road. [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2. He plans on to build a boat store and service 
center on the property. The proposed use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-106. - 

Uses allowed of C-2 zoning district which allows outside display and uses that are similar in comparison to light 
industrial. The proposed property is located on Lake Oconee Parkway which is a main corridor leading from the lake 

through Putnam County. It is adjacent to all C-1 properties which has historically been the preferred zoning district 
by the county along this corridor except for a few grandfathered C-2 parcels. More recently, the ordinance has been 
revised to exclude outside display in C-1 which requires any new establishments be operated wholly within 

permanently enclosed buildings as stated in Sec. 66-103 Uses Allowed. 
 

Staff recommendation is for denial to rezone 2.76 acres on Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 
062] from C-1 to C-2.  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

47



 

48



 
 

Subject C-
1 
Property 

GA HWY 
44

49



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for denial to rezone 2.76 acres on Greensboro Road [Map 
103A, Part of Parcel 062] from C-1 to C-2. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, December 3, 2020, at 

6:30 P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 
Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training requirements) 

 
STAFF: 

Lisa Jackson 
Ben Schmitt 

 
Mr. Mathew Zeig, Mr. Rett Tyler, and Mr. Roger Harderman represented this request. Mr. Zeig noted that 
they intend to build a new Skier’s Marine and boat sells facility. The business will be a sales and service dealership 

with direct access to Greensboro Road. Customer traffic is estimated at two per day and five on the weekends. It 
will have minimal impact on traffic because of the low volume of customers. No one spoke in opposition to this 

request. 
 
Vice-Chairman Pierson asked about the potential noise levels because of the business's boat repair portion. Mr. 

Tyler noted that this store would not be as busy as some of their other locations. The only time a boat would be 
running would be to check their fluid levels. If it took longer than two to three minutes, they would take it to the 

lake. The building they have proposed has an overhang, and you cannot see it from the front of the building. The 
only products they would sell are smaller ski boats and wake boats. Vice-Chairman Pierson noted that his office is 
across the street and is not worried about that. However, there are houses located behind the proposed business. 

Mr. Tyler again stated that if a boat needs more than five to six minutes to run, they would take it to the lake. 

50



 
Chairman Marshall asked the staff to explain the C-1 section of the ordinance that requires all displays be done 

within a permanently enclosed building. Ms. Jackson noted that C-1 was changed so that everything done in that 
zoning would have to be done inside a building. Historically, Highway 44 “Greensboro Highway”, the county has 

tried to maintain C-1 development along that corridor. That is why the recommendation was for denial rezoning 
from C-1 to C-2. She added that although there are a few C-2 properties along that strip, they have been 
grandfathered in. However, the county traditionally tried to maintain C-1 along that corridor along Lake Oconee. 

 
Mr. Zeig noted that they were not asking for anything speculative and knew exactly what their business will do. The 

zoning can be contingent that if Skier’s Marine does not occupy the building that it loses that zoning. Vice-
Chairman Pierson asked for clarification that zoning stays with the property regardless of occupant. Ms. Jackson 
answered, yes. Vice-Chairman Pierson noted that while that is a good thought, it just will not work that way. 

 
Member Hill asked about the hours of operation for the business. This question is because of the proximity of the 

business to residential homes. Mr. Tyler noted that their hours of operation are 8:30 am to 5:30 pm during the 
summer (closed Sunday and Monday). 8:30 am to 5:00 pm Monday-Friday, and 8:00 am to 1:00 pm on Saturdays 
during fall and winter.  

 
Staff recommendation is for denial to rezone 2.76 acres on Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 

062] from C-1 to C-2. 
 

Motion for denial of the request to rezone 2.76 acres along Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062] 
from C-1 to C-2 made by Vice-Chairman Pierson and seconded by Member Farley 
Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member Hill. 

 
Chairman Marshall added that the applicants should reconsider their request and work with the staff some more. 

We also recommend that the applicant presents this before the Board of Commissioners, they have the right to 
overturn this board’s recommendation. Mr. Tyler asked how often does the county commission overrule this board? 
Ms. Jackson noted that this board only makes a recommendation on rezoning and conditional uses, and it is not 

final. This board has made a recommendation for denial; however, the Board of Commissioners has the final 
decision on the matter. Which he can attend on the 15th of this month at 6:30 pm in this room and make your 

presentation to them as well. 
 
 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



File Attachments for Item:

8. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - January 8, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - January 11, 2021 Called Meeting (staff-CC)

c. Approval of 2021 Alcohol License (staff-CC)

71



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 8, 2021                                                                                                                                                     ________________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, January 8, 2021 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, January 8, 2021 at approximately 

9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:02 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Chairman Webster requested removal of agenda items 5a and 5c due to presenters and/or 

recipients unable to be here. 

Motion to approve the agenda with the removal of items 5a and 5c. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation 

County Attorney Fleming gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

Commissioner Sharp led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

72



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 8, 2021                                                                                                                                                     ________________ 

 

5. Special Presentations 

a. Alice Walker Books - Larry Moore 

b. Chamber of Commerce Bi-Annual Report - Maggie Milner 

c. Georgia Public Safety Training Center Recognition 

Items 5a and 5c were removed from the agenda. 

The new President of the Eatonton-Putnam Chamber of Commerce, Maggie Milner, gave the Bi-

Annual Chamber report. 

(Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

None 

 

7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - December 15, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution giving the Tax Commissioner Authority to 

Receive Funds (TC) 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution for Waiver of Penalties and Interest on 

Unpaid Ad Valorem Taxes (TC) 

d. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution Establishing Due Date for Property Taxes 

(TC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

8. Request by Jeffery K. Tays for Use Variance to allow for a standalone garage apartment at 

155 Rock Springs Road.  Presently zoned R-1R [Map 123C, Parcel 049] (staff-P&D) 

Mr. Jeffrey Tays spoke in support of this request.  No one signed in to speak against this item. 

Motion to approve the request by Jeffery K. Tays for a Use Variance to allow for a 

standalone garage apartment at 155 Rock Springs Road [Map 123C, Parcel 049]. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 8, 2021                                                                                                                                                     ________________ 

9. Discussion and possible action to continue Putnam General Hospital Subsidy (BW) 

Chairman Webster explained that the Putnam General Hospital subsidy was only funding for the 

first quarter of FY21 due to the recent referendum regarding raising the millage rate to retire 

hospital debt.  The referendum failed and the hospital has requested for the $100,000 per quarter 

subsidy to continue. 

County Manager Van Haute reviewed the approved budget. 

Motion to table this item until the first meeting in February subject to a letter being 

drafted by the Chairman to the Hospital Authority outlining how they are proposing to go 

forward towards profitability. 

Motion by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of letter made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

10. Chairman's Appointments (BW) 

a. BOC Vice-Chairman 

Commissioner Daniel Brown was reappointed as Vice-Chairman 

b. Middle Georgia Regional Commission Council 

Chairman Webster and Mayor Reid have approved the following to serve on the Middle Georgia 

Regional Commission Council: Chairman Webster as County Member, Mayor Reid as 

Municipal Member, Lyn Romine as Non-Public (Voting) Member, Daniel Kelhoffer and Gary 

Sanders as Associate (Non-Voting) Members. 

c. Hospital Authority Liaison 

Commissioner Brown agreed to continuing serving as the Hospital Authority Liaison 

 

11. Appointment of County Clerk 

Motion to reappoint Lynn Butterworth as County Clerk. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

12. Appointment of County Attorney (BW) 

Motion to reappoint Fleming & Nelson as the County Attorney. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

13. Appointments to the Sinclair Water Authority (BW & CC) 

Chairman Webster advised that he will serve on the Sinclair Water Authority in the position for 

Chairman or his designee. 

Nomination for Tommy Jefferson to be appointed to the Sinclair Water Authority. 

Nomination made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting for Tommy Jefferson: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, 

Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

74



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 8, 2021                                                                                                                                                     ________________ 

14. Appointments to the Planning & Zoning Commission (staff-CC) 

Commissioner Brown, seconded by Commissioner Sharp, nominated Martha Farley to 

serve as the District Two representative on the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Commissioner Sharp, seconded by Commissioner Brown, nominated Tim Pierson to serve 

as the District Three representative on the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Commissioner McElhenney, seconded by Commissioner Brown, nominated Maurice Hill to 

serve as the District One representative on the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Commissioner Brown, seconded by Commissioner Wooten, nominated James Marshall to 

serve as the Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Voting Yea for the slate of nominees: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, 

Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

 

Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute thanked the Public Works department for their dedication, success 

and loyalty in the recent weeks.  They were out Christmas morning and New Year’s Day making 

the roads safe for our citizens. 

 

16. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

17. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: none 

 

Commissioner Wooten: thanked the County Manager and Public Works for their hard work on 

the road that washed out - they did an excellent job and are very appreciated 

 

Chairman Webster: reminded everyone of the Called Meeting on Monday, January 11, 2021 at 

3:00 p.m.  He also thanked the EMS and Fire department for their hard work over the busy 

holidays. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 8, 2021                                                                                                                                                     ________________ 

Closing 
18. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:23 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

76



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 1 of 3                                                                                     Approved 

January 11, 2021                                                                                                                                                        ______________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Called Meeting 

Minutes 

Monday, January 11, 2021 ◊ 3:00 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Monday, January 11, 2021 at 

approximately 3:00 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Planning & Development Director Lisa Jackson 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 3:03 p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

Commissioner Sharp led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 2 of 3                                                                                     Approved 

January 11, 2021                                                                                                                                                        ______________ 

Regular Business Meeting 
3. Appeal by 1054 Lake Oconee Parkway LLC dba/Anchors Marina to the Fire Chief 

Administrative Decision to require a fire suppression system at Anchors Marina (BW) 

Chairman Webster explained the rules regarding speaking time: the Fire Chief and the 

designated speaker for Anchors Marina will each receive ten minutes each, questions from the 

board don't count; all others receive three minutes each. 

 

County Attorney Nelson reviewed the circumstances leading up to the appeal and explained the 

process for this meeting.  The Fire Chief reviewed the request from Anchors Marina for a 

Certificate of Occupancy and denied it.  Under our Code of Ordinances the appeal is supposed to 

go to the Board of Commissioners and it was filed timely.  The project is nearing completion and 

during the inspection process the problem was identified.  At this meeting we will hear from both 

sides to determine the best way to move forward.  The Board of Commissioners has no authority 

to waive requirements of the code, but can determine when the code applies and when it 

doesn't.  The board can either approve the Fire Chief's decision or grant the appeal to Anchors 

Marina or direct staff to work out additional arrangements between the county and the developer 

which would require a motion to table today.  He also advised that staff is available here at the 

meeting to answer questions. 

 

Fire Chief McClain gave a PowerPoint presentation explaining his reasons for the denial. 

 

Attorney Doug Dillard, representing Anchors Marina, expressed his concerns with the 

requirements of the Fire Chief.  He also submitted and reviewed handouts. 

 

The following individuals spoke in opposition to the appeal: David Nix (showed video), Erin 

Olson, Renee Burgdorff, and Karen Craig.  The following individuals spoke in support of the 

appeal: Charles Conner, Brandon Burgess, and Josh Sprayberry.  Economic Development 

Director Pat Topping provided comments from the Putnam Development Authority. 

 

Motion to accept the appeal by 1054 Lake Oconee Parkway LLC dba/Anchors Marina to 

the Fire Chief administrative decision to require a fire suppression system at Anchors 

Marina based on Exhibit D in the handouts by Doug Dillard. 

 

Amended motion to allow issuance of a certificate of occupancy for 1054 Lake Oconee 

Parkway LLC, with respect to fire protection systems only consistent with the fire 

protection systems presented by the appellant in a letter dated 12/23/20 by Life Safety 

Consulting of GA LLC 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

Voting Nay: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Wooten 

 

Tie vote is denial of appeal. 

(Copy of presentation and handouts made a part of the minutes on minute book pages 

__________ to ___________.) 

 

 

78



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 3 of 3                                                                                     Approved 

January 11, 2021                                                                                                                                                        ______________ 

Closing 
4. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 4:37 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

79



File Attachments for Item:

9. Authorization for staff to schedule Public Hearing for proposed changes to the Putnam County Code 

of Ordinances - Chapter 6 (Alcohol), Chapter 66 (Zoning), and Appendix D (Short Term Vacation Rental) 

(staff-CA & CC)

80



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

EXPLANATION OF DOCUMENTS: 

 

Red language equals added text. 

Struck through language equals deleted text. 

 

Chapter 6 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 

 

Sec. 6-61. - Additional requirements applicable to licenses for the retail package sale of malt 

beverages and/or wine.  

(a)  Before any retail package sale of malt beverages and/or wine license is granted, the applicant 

must post with the board of commissioners, along with his application, a performance bond 

with an insurance company as surety. Such bond is to be conditioned requiring the faithful 

observance and performance by the licensee of the rules and regulations contained in this 

division. Upon the violation of this division, or any part thereof, the amount of the bond to be 

forfeited will be determined by the seriousness of the violations as determined by the board 

of commissioners. Such bond is to be approved by the board of commissioners and shall be 

properly executed. Such bond shall be in the amount of $300.00.  

(b)  The annual fee for a retail package sale of malt beverages license shall be based on a schedule 

developed by the Putnam County Clerk’s Office. Such fee shall be payable to Putnam County. 

$150.00 per annum or in the case of a new business, a portion thereof based on the number of 

months remaining in that initial calendar year.  

(c)  The annual fee for a retail package sale of wine license shall be based on a schedule 

developed by the Putnam County Clerk’s Office.  Such fee shall be payable to Putnam County. 

$150.00 per annum or in the case of a new business, a portion thereof based on the number of 

months remaining in that initial calendar year.  

(Amend. of 2-18-2003; Ord. of 7-19-2016(1) )  

 

Sec. 6-91. - Additional requirements applicable to licenses for the retail package sale of distilled 

spirits.  

(a)  No retailer shall sell or offer for sale or display or keep in stock, at his place of business 

where distilled spirits are offered for sale, any other products or commodity except the 

following:  

(1)  Malt beverages and wines, when properly licensed;  

(2)  Beverages containing no alcohol commonly used to dilute distilled spirits;  

(3)  Tobacco products;  

(4)  Ice to be sold in sealed containers only;  

(5)  Paper, styrofoam or plastic cups.  

(b)  No beverages of any kind may be opened or consumed in such place of business.  

81

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=784151&datasource=ordbank


TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

(c)  Only one retail package sales of distilled spirits license shall be issued to any one person in 

the county.  

(d)  All licensed retailers shall sell or offer to sell in the original unbroken package only.  

(e)  The annual fee for a retail package sale of distilled spirits license shall be based on a schedule 

developed by the Putnam County Clerk’s Office.  Such fee shall be payable to Putnam County.  

$2,400.00 per annum or in the case of a new business, a portion thereof based on the number 

of months remaining in that initial calendar year.  

 

Sec. 6-121. - Additional requirements applicable to licenses for the retail consumption on 

premises of malt beverages, wine, and distilled spirits.  

(a)  The annual fee for a retail consumption on the premises of malt beverages and/ or wine 

license shall be based on a schedule developed by the Putnam County Clerk’s Office.  Such 

fee shall be payable to Putnam County. $300.00 per annum or in the case of a new business, 

a portion thereof based on the number of months remaining in that initial calendar year. 

Nonprofit organizations that have been approved by the Internal Revenue Service for tax-

exempt status are exempt from this fee.  

(b)  The annual fee for a retail consumption on the premises of distilled spirits license shall be 

based on a schedule developed by the Putnam County Clerk’s Office.  Such fee shall be 

payable to Putnam County. $500.00 per annum or in the case of a new business, a portion 

thereof based on the number of months remaining in that initial calendar year. Nonprofit 

organizations that have been approved by the Internal Revenue Service for tax-exempt status 

are exempt from this fee.  

(c)  No person or corporation who holds a retail consumption on the premises license shall 

operate a business or other enterprise involving the sale of any alcoholic beverage in such a 

manner so as to create, promote, suffer or otherwise permit the disruption or disturbance of 

the quiet enjoyment of the owners of properties located in the same vicinity and general 

neighborhood of the business premises of the licensee.  

(d)  The using, operating or permitting to be played, of any radio receiving set, musical 

instrument, tape player, phonograph or other machine or device for the producing or 

reproducing of sound in such manner to disturb the peace, quiet and comfort of the 

neighboring inhabitants or at any time with louder volume than is necessary for the convenient 

hearing for the person or persons who are in the area, room, vehicle or chamber in which such 

machine is operated and who are voluntary listeners thereto. The operation of any such set, 

instrument, player, phonograph, machine or device between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 

a.m. in such a manner as to be plainly audible at a distance of 150 feet from the building, 

structure or vehicle in which it is located shall be prima facie evidence of a violation of this 

article.  

(e)  Yelling, shouting, hooting, whistling or singing, particularly between the hours of 11:00 p.m. 

and 7:00 a.m., or at any time or place so as to disturb the quiet, comfort or repose of persons 

in any office, or in any dwelling, hotel or other type of residence, or of any persons in the 

vicinity shall constitute a violation of this code section.  

82



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

(f)  No person or corporation who holds a retail consumption on the premises license shall 

operate a business or other enterprise involving the sale of any alcoholic beverage in such a 

manner which results in a public nuisance or which is injurious to the public health, safety, or 

comfort of the citizens of the county.  

(g)  Each licensee shall ensure and make provision for adequate parking for licensee's patrons 

on or in close proximity to the licensed premises and shall take such action as is necessary 

and required to ensure that vehicular and pedestrian traffic to and from licensee's business 

premises does not unduly disrupt normal traffic flow on the public roadways in the vicinity of 

the business premises and neither the public nor private property is obstructed by parking by 

patrons of the licensee.  

(Amend. of 2-18-2003; Amend. of 11-6-2009(2); Ord. of 7-19-2016(1) )  

83

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=784151&datasource=ordbank


TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

EXPLANATION OF DOCUMENTS: 

 

Red language equals added text. 

Struck through language equals deleted text. 

 

Chapter 66 - ZONING 

 

Sec. 66-73. - Development standards. 

  

(a) Minimum lot size: 5 acres. 

(b) Minimum road frontage: 50 feet. On a cul-de-sac: 40 feet. 

(c) Minimum lot width at the building setback line: 100 feet. 

(d) Minimum setback requirements for the principal structure are as follows: 

(1) Front setback: 30 feet  

(2) Side setback: 20 feet. 

(3) Rear setback: 20 feet. From lake, creek, or river: 100 feet. 

(4) State Hwy/Main Arterial Road setback: 50 feet 

(e) Minimum setback requirements for allowed accessory uses, including accessory 

buildings, decks, porches, carports, garages, swimming pools and other allowed 

accessory uses are as follows:  

 (1) Front setback: 30 feet  

 (2) Side setback: 20 feet. 

 (3) Rear setback: 20 feet 

 (4) State Hwy/Main Arterial road setback: 50 feet 

(f)  Maximum height of all structures: 35 feet from highest point of grade for any 

residential structures, 45 feet from highest point of grade for any non-residential 

structures (except silos or water towers). 

(g) Minimum residential heated floor area: 

(1) Dwelling, Single-Family Detached: 1,000 square feet 

(2) Dwelling Manufactured Home: 600 square feet. 

(h) Minimum off-street parking spaces is two spaces for the principal use and one 

additional off-street space for each 1,000 square feet of accessory use.  

(i) Up to one family accessory dwelling unit is permitted per lot.  

(j) A maximum of three tenant dwellings. 

(k) Slaughterhouses are only allowed on a minimum of 20 acres; not allowed on existing 

nonconforming lots of record.  

(l) Racetracks are not allowed on existing nonconforming lots of record. 

84



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

(m)  Maximum lot coverage by impervious surface: 35 percent  

 

Sec. 66-97. - Development standards. 

  

(a) As to all uses other than single-family dwelling, duplex, triplex, and quadruplex, 

minimum parcel size: 20 acres (with community water and an approved EPD septic 

system or sewer).  

(b) Total parcel size, if commercial is included, must have a minimum of 50 acres. 

(c) As to all uses other than single-family dwelling, duplex, triplex, and quadruplex, 

minimum lot width shall not be less than 500 feet, excluding the first 200 feet of lot 

depth from the road.  

(d) Minimum requirements are dependent on what can be determined from the concept 

plan with respect to how the proposed development relates to surrounding properties 

and what efforts and design solutions are in place to mitigate potential adverse effects 

on the natural environment, and how the development utilizes the topography to best 

achieve a harmonious design.  

(1) As to all uses other than single-family dwelling, duplex, triplex, and quadruplex, 

a 50-foot-wide natural undisturbed buffer or a berm, replanted where sparsely 

vegetated, shall exist adjacent to all property lines.  

(2) Minimum setback from lake, creek or river: 100 feet. 

(3) Environmentally sensitive areas, i.e. wetlands, flood zones, etc. These areas shall 

be demarcated in the field and shall remain undisturbed.  

(4) All drainage courses shall remain pristine with 25-foot-wide buffers on each side. 

(5) No vehicle parking areas shall exist between the proposed buildings and the 

boundary property lines.  

(6) Maximum lot coverage by buildings: 35 percent. 

(e) Maximum density per lot is eight dwelling units per acre with 35 percent open space 

or ten units per acre with 50 percent open space.  

(f) Minimum heated floor area: 1,000 square feet. 

(g) Building height: Maximum height of all structures: 35 feet highest point of grade for 

any residential structures, 45 feet from highest point of grade for any non-residential 

structures. Three stories. 

(h) Minimum off-street parking space: Two spaces per dwelling unit. The director shall 

determine the number of off-street parking spaces necessary for any recreational 

facility, depending on the number of people the health department determines can be 

in the pool areas and the fire marshal determines the occupancy rating for any building. 

Parking for the commercial portion shall be one space for each 200 square feet of total 

commercial floor area. Parking shall be provided on the same lot as the use it serves.  

(i) Accessory buildings: Maximum of two per lot, excluding one garage, or carport and 

one well house.  

85



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

(j) maximum lot coverage by impervious surface: 45 percent 

(Res. of 7-17-2007(4); Amend. of 3-18-2008; Amend. of 4-17-2012(2); Amend. of 9-17-

2013(2))  

 

Sec. 66-118 Development Standards 

 

Lot Dimensions R-PUD C-PUD 

Minimum Lot Area 15 acres 25 acres 

Minimum Lot Width As established in an approved 

concept plan 

As established in an 

approved concept plan Minimum Lot Frontage 

Setbacks   

Principal Building   

Front As established in an approved 

concept plan 

As established in an 

approved concept plan 

Side 10 feet 10 feet 

Rear 10 feet; 65 feet if property is 

along a lake, river, or creek 

10 feet; 100 feet if 

property is along a lake, 

river, or creek 

(commercial use); 65 feet 

if residential use. 

State Hwy or Arterial 50 feet 50 feet 

Accessory Building   

From Principal Structure As established in an approved 

concept plan 

As established in an 

approved concept plan 

Front Not Permitted Not Permitted 

Side 10 feet if less than 100 sf 

20 feet if greater than 100 sf 

 

Rear  

Maximum Height   

Principal 35 feet from highest point of 

grade 

35 feet from highest point 

of grade for any 

residential structures, 45 

feet from highest point of 

grade for any non-

residential structures. 

Accessory   

Minimum Floor Area   

Single Family Detached 1,000 sf 1,000 sf 

Single Family Attached 1,000 sf 1,000 sf 

Manufactured Home   

One-Bedroom Unit 700 sf 700 sf 

Two-Bedroom Unit 900 sf 900 sf 

Three or More Bedroom Unit 1100 sf 1100 sf 

86

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=611744&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=611744&datasource=ordbank


TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Impervious Surface Coverage As established in an approved 

concept plan 

As established in an 

approved concept plan 

Residential Density 8 dwelling unit maximum per 

acre 

8 dwelling unit maximum 

per acre 

Land Use Mix Residential – 100% Residential: Minimum of 

25% of total acreage 

Commercial: Minimum of 

25% of total acreage1 

Water and Sewer Must be connected to a central 

water supply and sewer system 

Must be connected to a 

central water supply and 

sewer system 
1Minimums are determined by floor area of interior spaces for each use category 

 

87



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

EXPLANATION OF DOCUMENTS: 

 

Red language equals added text. 

Struck through language equals deleted text. 

 

APPENDIX D - SHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL 
 

Sec. 4. - Application; fee.  

a.  An application for a short term vacation rental certificate shall be submitted, under oath, on a 

form specified by the planning & development director, or their designee, accompanied by a 

$25.00 non-refundable application fee as set forth by the county clerk’s office board of 

commissioners, which shall include at a minimum the following information or 

documentation:  

1.  The name, address, telephone and email address of the owner(s) of record of the dwelling 

unit for which a certificate is sought. If such owner is not a natural person, the application 

shall identify all partners, officers and/or directors of any such entity, including personal 

contact information;  

2.  The address of the unit to be used as a short term vacation rental;  

3.  The name, address, telephone number and email address of the short term vacation rental 

agent, which shall constitute his or her 24-hour contact information and who shall:  

a.  Be reasonably available to handle any problems arising from use of the short term 

vacation rental unit;  

b.  Appear on the premises within 24 hours following notification from the planning 

and development director, or his/her designee, of issues related to the use or 

occupancy of the premises.  

c.  Receive and accept service of any notice of violation related to the use or occupancy 

of the premises; and  

d.  Monitor the short term vacation rental unit for compliance with this chapter;  

4.  The owner's sworn acknowledgment that he or she has received a copy of this section, 

has reviewed it and understands its requirements;  

5.  The owner shall state the maximum occupancy for the residence, which shall be the same 

number as advertised and marketed to potential renters by or on behalf of the owner;  

6.  The owner's agreement to use his or her best efforts to assure that use of the premises by 

short term vacation rental occupants will not disrupt the neighborhood, and will not 

interfere with the rights of neighboring property owners to the quiet enjoyment of their 

properties;  

7.  A copy of an exemplar agreement between the owner and occupant(s) which obligate the 

occupant to abide by all of the requirements of the chapter, and other county ordinances, 

state and federal law, and that such a violation of any of these rules may result in the 

immediate termination of the agreement and eviction from the premises, as well as 

potential liability for payment of fines levied;  

88



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

8.  Proof of the owner's current ownership of the short term vacation rental unit; and  

9.  Proof of homeowner's insurance.  

b.  Registration under this code section is not transferrable and should ownership of a short term 

vacation rental change, a new application is required, including application fee. In the event 

of any other change in the information or facts provided in the application, the holder of the 

short term rental certificate shall amend the filed application without payment of any 

additional application fee.  

89


	Top
	Item #5.	2021-01-19 BOC Rezoning-Copelan
	Copelan Rezoning Minutes 121520
	Copelan-Request to table rezoning
	Copelan-P&Z Info
	Zoning Map_Redacted
	Copelan-Application2
	Copelan-Letters
	Copelan-Map
	Copelan-Map Zoom
	Copelan-Future Land Use

	Item #6.	2021-01-19 BOC Rezoning-Tyler Land
	Tyler Land Rezoning Minutes 121520
	Tyler-Request to table rezoning_Redacted
	Tyler-P&Z Info
	Zoning Map_Redacted
	Tyler-Application2
	Tyler-Map
	Tyler-Map Zoom
	Tyler-Future Land Use

	Item #8.	2021-01-19 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 01-08-21 BOC Minutes
	DRAFT 01-11-21 BOC Called Meeting Minutes

	Item #9.	2021-01-19 BOC Code Changes
	Chapter 6-Fees
	Chapter 66-Height Restrictions
	Appendix D-Fees

	Bottom

